
 

 

Minutes of 

THE FACULTY SENATE 

OF 

ARKANSAS TECH UNIVERSITY 

 

The Faculty Senate met Tuesday, March 13, 2018, at 3:00 p.m. in Rothwell 456.   

The following members were present:   

  

Dr. Jon Clements Dr. Johnette Moody 

Dr. Melissa Darnell Dr. Jeremy Schwehm 

Dr. David Eshelman Dr. Monty Smith 

Dr. Marcel Finan Dr. V. Carole Smith 

Ms. Holly Ruth Gale Dr. James Stobaugh 

Dr. Debra Hunter Dr. Bruce Tedford 

Dr. Shelia Jackson Dr. Jack Tucci 

Dr. Chris Kellner Dr. Susan Underwood 

 

Dr. Molly Brant, Dr. Joshua Lockyer, Dr. Jason Patton, and Dr. Michael Rogers were 

absent.  Dr. Phil Bridgmon, Mr. Wyatt Watson, Mr. Thomas Pennington,  

Dr. Thomas Nupp, Dr. Robin Lasey, and Ms. Pat Chronister were visitors. 

   

CALL TO ORDER 

 

APPROVAL OF 

MINUTES 

 

President Clements called for a motion in regard to the minutes of February 13, 2018. 

 

Motion by Dr. Moody, seconded by Dr. Stobaugh, to approve the minutes as distributed.  

Motion carried. 

VPAA UPDATE President Clements invited Dr. Phil Bridgmon, Associate Vice President for Academic 

Affairs, to address the Senate.  Dr. Bridgmon reported Dr. Abdelrahman had been out of the 

office the past few weeks, but Academic Affairs would continue to provide the same level of 

service to the faculty, especially during this busy time of year.  Dr. Bridgmon thanked the 

Senate and excused himself from the meeting.   

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

STANDING 

COMMITTEE 

ELECTIONS 

 

President Clements reported Dr. Moody had once again agreed to facilitate the faculty 

elections through Blackboard.  The senators decided to hold the elections from March 26 

until April 2.  President Clements thanked Dr. Moody for providing this service.   

SENATE BYLAWS/ 

HANDBOOK 

AMENDMENTS 

 

President Clements referred to a proposal by Mr. Ken Futterer in the February meeting to 

amend the Faculty Senate constitution to require a two-thirds majority of the Senate 

membership to recommend a change to the Faculty Handbook, mirroring the requirement for 

amending the constitution.   

 

Motion by Dr. Jackson, seconded by Dr. Eshelman, to amend the constitution of the Faculty 

Senate to require a two-thirds majority of the Senate membership to recommend a change to 

the Faculty Handbook.  Motion carried. 

 

President Clements noted, because amendments to the constitution of the Faculty Senate 

must also be voted upon by the full faculty, this item would be added to the ballot in the 

upcoming elections, requiring a 51% affirmative vote of those participating.   

 

ATHLETICS 

COMMITTEE 

 

President Clements invited Dr. Robin Lasey to address the Senate.  Dr. Lasey distributed an 

update of athletic academic initiatives and programs, as the Faculty Athletic Representative 

(Attachment A).  She requested continued understanding from faculty for student athlete 

absences for athletic functions.  She also indicated Ms. Amy Anderson serves as the Director 

of Student-Athlete Success, and encouraged faculty to refer struggling student athletes to 



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 2 

Ms. Anderson.   

 

Dr. Lasey also distributed a proposal to establish a Center for Excellence in Teaching and 

Learning Advisory Board as a standing committee (Attachment B).  Senators discussed the 

inclusion of both tenured and untenured faculty, and whether “untenured” indicated non-

tenured on track faculty, or non-tenure track faculty.  Dr. Lasey responded she was open to 

suggestions and wanted to have a range of perspectives on the advisory board.   

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

EXTERNAL WORK 

POLICY 

 

President Clements invited Mr. Thomas Pennington, University Counsel, to address the 

Senate.  Mr. Pennington distributed the external employment policy draft (Attachment C) 

and a draft of the memorandum of understanding (MOU) (Attachment D).   

President Clements expressed the policy had been discussed and reviewed multiple times 

and he encouraged the senators to move the policy forward. 

 

Motion by Dr. Tucci, seconded by Dr. Hunter, to approve the external employment policy as 

presented.   

 

Following the motion, Dr. Eshelman reported there were still concerns from his faculty 

colleagues, particularly in terms of scholarship and whether or not the university could claim 

ownership for work done on a university computer.  Mr. Pennington responded filing the 

MOU should address such concerns.  President Clements noted the change to item three of 

the policy directs faculty to the MOU.   

 

Mr. Pennington explained the MOU would be filed with the Vice President for Academic 

Affairs to ensure consist treatment of all faculty, rather than each Dean approaching it 

differently.  He stated the MOU should be completed on an annual basis.  Senators discussed 

the inclusion of staff, accreditation work, and work done after hours and off contract.   

 

President Clements called for a vote.   

 

Motion to approve the policy carried. 

 

Motion by Dr. Jackson, seconded by Dr. Hunter, to approve the memorandum of 

understanding as presented.   

 

President Clements clarified the MOU could be revisited once areas of improvement were 

identified through implementation and use by the faculty.  Mr. Pennington noted the existing  

outside employment provision in the Faculty Handbook could be replaced with the newly 

approved policy.  President Clements stated he would delay the vote to change the 

Handbook until the April meeting for a two-thirds majority.   

 

Motion carried.   

 

Senators discussed the documents being available on the University Counsel’s webpage, the 

Faculty Resources webpage, and in the Handbook, if approved. 

 

Mr. Pennington thanked the Senate and excused himself from the meeting.    

 

COURSE 

EVALUATIONS 

 

President Clements invited Mr. Wyatt Watson, Director of Institutional Research, to address 

the Senate.  Mr. Watson asked what questions the senators had.  Dr. Stobaugh asked if 

instructors could receive global scores on their evaluations.  Mr. Watson responded it was 

possible, and described some methods to provide the score.  Senators discussed the need to 

exclude student effort and reflection questions which would not pertain to the instructor’s 

performance.  Dr. Kellner indicated the mean was not the best calculation to use, noting a 

preference for the modal score.   

Dr. Tucci asked if the evaluations could be scheduled to prevent students from evaluating 



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 3 

instructors after dropping a course.  Mr. Watson responded it was possible, and reported he 

was working with the Office of Information Systems to investigate a way to integrate 

EvaluationKit with Blackboard, to easily track which students are enrolled at the time 

evaluations are released.  He noted one challenge was some faculty do not evaluate every 

course, creating a need to identify in EvaluationKit which courses to exclude.   

 

Dr. Kellner expressed interest in having students who drop a course provide feedback.   

Mr. Watson stated he believed that was possible, but would need to investigate how to 

implement.  He also noted the Registrar’s Office was working on an online drop system 

intended for online students, which would collect information on why a course was being 

dropped.  Ms. Chronister reported the Registrar would be reviewing this new system as part 

of the Professional Development Day in May.   

 

President Clements asked by what date Mr. Watson would need any requested changes to the 

evaluations for spring 2018.  Mr. Watson responded April 10 would be ideal.   

   

COLLEGE 

CURRICULUM 

COMMITTEES 

 

President Clements reported he discussed the College Curriculum Committees with  

Dr. Bridgmon.  President Clements stated he needed to gather more information before the 

Senate moved forward.     

INDIRECT COSTS 

 

President Clements stated Dr. Bridgmon was in support of the indirect cost policy 

(Attachment E), and encouraged the senators to move forward.   

 

Motion by Dr. Tucci, seconded by Dr. Underwood, to approve the indirect cost policy as 

distributed.   

 

Dr. Tucci expressed appreciation for the administration’s flexibility on indirect costs, noting 

that was uncommon at other institutions.   

 

Motion carried.  

 

TUITION WAIVER 

PROPOSAL 

 

Dr. Underwood distributed a new draft of the tuition waiver policy, which incorporated 

feedback received from various groups.  She summarized the changes, and stated this draft 

would go to the Executive Council for approval.  President Clements called for a vote of 

support as the policy goes before the Executive Council. 

   

Motion by Dr. Stobaugh, seconded by Dr. Eshelman, to support the tuition waiver policy as 

presented.   

 

President Clements thanked Dr. Underwood and those who served on the committee.   

 

Motion carried. 

 

OPEN FORUM 

 

Dr. Hunter reported a coach had encouraged faculty to contact Ms. Amy Anderson as soon 

as possible when a student athlete was not attending class or completing assignments, so she 

should intervene.   

 

Dr. Kellner reported the department head for Biological Sciences, Dr. John Jackson, had 

reviewed the promotion and tenure policy that was approved, and had been surprised to see 

the language that classroom instruction must be judged by the department head to be at least 

satisfactory, without mention of the DPTC.  President Clements referenced a section 

directing the DPTC and department head to work together, and noted the document should 

be considered in its entirety.  Dr. Kellner stated this was one example of how the document 

can be interpreted, and expressed concern others may interpret the same way.   

President Clements stated this is a living document that will need to be evaluated and 

revisited as it is implemented and used by the faculty and departments.   



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 4 

 

Dr. Moody reported some faculty have expressed interest in approaching the administration 

to buy out faculty contracts.  President Clements reported he had discussed phased 

retirement with Dr. Bridgmon, and that Dr. Bridgmon would broach this with the Executive 

Council during budgetary discussions.  

 

Dr. Kellner reported a few faculty members were experiencing issues with budgets for grants 

being set up in a timely manner.  President Clements stated he would reach out to  

Dr. Rick Massengale, Associate Vice President for Sponsored Programs and University 

Initiatives, to come address the Senate.   

 

Dr. Darnell stated the Nursing department often had issues locating computer lab spaces 

with enough capacity for a class of 35-40.  Dr. Hunter suggested checking the availability of 

Rothwell 213 and 313.  Ms. Chronister stated the Registrar was working in AdAstra to 

optimize room assignments for the fall schedule.   

 

ADJOURNMENT The meeting adjourned at 4:53pm. 

 

 

         Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
Jon Clements, D.M., President 

 

 
Jack Tucci, Ph.D., Secretary 

  



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 5 

Attachment A 

 

 
  



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 6 

Attachment B 

 

 
  



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 7 

Attachment C 

 

 
  



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 8 

Attachment D 

 

 
 

 



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 9 

  



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 10 

Attachment E 

 

 



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 11 

  
  



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 12 

Attachment F 

 

 
  



The Faculty Senate – March 13, 2018 13 

 


